
 
 
 

Mr S Hearse 
Chief Executive 
Torridge District Council 

Riverbank House 
Bideford 

Devon 
EX39 2QG 
 

Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700 

 

 

 

 
Date: 18 July 2022 

 

MEETING OF INTERNAL OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY  
COMMITTEE 

 

On: Tuesday 26 July 2022 At: 10.00 am 

Venue: Caddsdown Business Support Centre, Bideford, EX39 3BE 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

From the 7 May 2021, the law requires all councils to hold formal meetings in person. The 
Council is also required to follow Government guidance and ensure that all venues used 

are Covid secure and that all appropriate measures are put in place. Members of the public 

will be able to attend the meeting in person if they are registered to speak under public 
participation. Any members of the public who want to view the meeting will be able to watch 

through the Councils YouTube Channel https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube 
 

 

To: Councillor P Watson (Chair) 

Councillor T Inch (Vice-Chair) 
Councillors: R Boughton, R Clarke, C Cottle-Hunkin, J Gubb, P Hames, 

S Harding and S Langford 
 
Non elected Members: Mr S Dengate and Mr I Harper 

 
Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting 

 

AGENDA 
PART I - (OPEN SESSION) 

  

1.   Apologies For Absence  

2.   Minutes (Pages 3 - 6) 

 Confirmation of the minutes held on 14th June 2022 
 

3.   Action List (Pages 7 - 10) 

https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube


 
 

 

4.   Public Contributions  

 A 15-minute period for public contributions.  (The deadline for registering to speak is 

by 2pm Friday 22nd July. To register please email dem.services@torridge.gov.uk). 
 

5.   Declaration of Interests  

 Members with interests should refer to the agenda item and describe the nature of 
their interest when the item is considered.  
 

6.   Urgent Matters Brought Forward with the Permission of the Chair  

7.   Agreement of Agenda Items Part I And II  

 There are no Part II items.  
 

8.   QBR 1 - Financial Pages Only (Pages 11 - 20) 

 To receive the report of the Finance Manager (S151 Officer)  
 

9.   Census 2021 - Initial Results  

 To receive an update from the ICT, Strategy & Performance Manager. 
 

10.   Digital by Default and ICT Strategy (Pages 21 - 32) 

 To be presented by the ICT, Strategy & Performance Manager. 
 

11.   Temporary Accommodation  

 To receive a verbal update from the Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring Officer)  

 

12.   Consideration of the Forward Plan (Page 33) 

 To review the Forward Plan. 

 

13.   Exclusion of the Public  

 The Chairman to move:-  

 
That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 

Government Act 1972.  
 

 Meeting Organiser: Dem.Services - 01237 428705 
 

 Centre for Public Scrutiny – website            http://www.cfps.org.uk/ 

 

 

mailto:dem.services@torridge.gov.uk
http://www.cfps.org.uk/


1 
 

 
 

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

INTERNAL OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY MEETING 
 

Caddsdown Business Support Centre, Bideford, EX39 3BE 
 

Tuesday, 14 June 2022 - 2.00 pm 

 
PRESENT Councillor T Inch (Vice-Chair) 

 
 Councillors R Boughton, J Gubb, P Hames, S Harding and 

S Newton and C Leather substituting. 

 
 Mr S Dengate 

 
ALSO PRESENT S Hearse - Chief Executive 
 S Dorey - Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring 

Officer) 
 D Heyes - Finance Manager (Section 151 Officer) 

 J Walter - Strategy, Performance & ICT Manager 
 T Vanstone - Senior Electoral & Democratic Services 

Officer 

 K Brown - Democratic Services Officer 
 

 Councillors C Hodson, K James and N Laws  
 

181.    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

Apologies were received from Councillors: C Cottle-Hunkin, S Langford and P 

Watson. Councillor Leather substituted for Councillor Watson. 
 
Apologies were also received from Mr I Harper.  

 
182.    MINUTES  

 

Page 5, second paragraph from the bottom should read ‘morale’ not ‘moral’  
 

It was proposed by Councillor Newton, seconded by Councillor Harding and – 
 

Resolved: 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 3rd May 2022 be agreed and recorded as a 

correct record. 
 

(Vote: For – 6, Abstentions 2) 
 

183.    ACTION LIST  
 

The action list was noted. 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



2 
 

 
 

184.    PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS  
 

There were no public contributions. 
 

185.    DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

Members were reminded that declarations of interest should be made as and when 

the specific agenda item to which they related was under discussion. 
 

186.    URGENT MATTERS BROUGHT FORWARD WITH THE PERMISSION OF 
THE CHAIR  
 

No urgent matters were brought forward. 
 

187.    AGREEMENT OF AGENDA ITEMS PART I AND II  
 

There were no Part II items. 

 
188.    QBR 4  

 

The purpose of the report was to receive the QBR and update Members on the 
surplus for the financial year 2021/22.  

 
Slide presentations were received from the ICT, Strategy & Performance Manager 

and the Finance Manager (S151 Officer). 
 
The ICT, Strategy & Performance Manager introduced the QBR presenting the 

Performance Highlights, summarising the positives and negatives on each of the 
following four Themes: 

 

 Theme 1 – Local Economy 

 Theme 2 – Communities, Health & Housing 

 Theme 3 – Our Environment, Our Future 

 Theme 4 – Our Council 

 
Following queries from Councillor Hames regarding phone calls increasing it was 

advised this was during Covid and they have now slowed down. The Chief 
Executive and ICT, Strategy & Performance Manager were not aware of any 
complaints received due to the waiting time of calls being answered. The 

discussion progressed to the main switchboard and the changes made. It was 
agreed for the changes to be included in the Members Bulletin.  

 
The Finance Manager (S151 Officer) continued the presentation by providing a 
detailed explanation on the key favourable variances within the report. A decision 

would be required from Communities & Resources on how to allocate the surplus. 
The Finance Manager (S151 Officer) advised the surplus may need to contribute to 

next year’s pay award, however, more details regarding the employers pay offer to 
the unions would be ascertained at a conference call the next day and then be 
included within the C&R report. 

 

Page 4



3 
 

 
 

The report was noted.  
 

QBR Questions and Answers 
 

Questions regarding the QBR were asked for in writing prior to the meeting to 
allow Officers time to formulate a response.  
 

The Chair presented the Q&A supplement during which the following additional 
comments/questions were raised: 

 

 Regarding the question from Mr Dengate on the floating offshore initiative 
he asked more specifically what the next steps would be for Torridge 

District Council? It was advised that a written response would be 
ascertained from the Head of Communities & Place. 

 Councillor Hames expressed his concern to the lack of responses to the 
People & Places consultations. The Chief Executive advised of the efforts 

made to promote this and that progress was being made to consult more 
with Town & Parish Councils so that these Members can engage more 
with residents and constituents.  

 The take up at the work hub in Torrington was disappointing, hopefully 
usage would increase. 

 In response to an additional question asking where the electrical 
equipment gets taken, it was confirmed that an answer would be 
ascertained from the Operational Services Manager and distributed to the 

group. 

 The new measure on Affordable Housing in a question from Mr Dengate 

referred to page 47, measure LE172. The ICT, Strategy & Performance 
Manager provided further clarification on this. 

 It was confirmed that the Questions and Answers to the QBR are made 
public. 

 

 
 

189.    ANNUAL REPORT  
 

The Chair presented the annual report of the Internal Overview & Scrutiny 

Committee which detailed work conducted over the last year and future work for the 
Committee.  

 
Details of the Social Values legislation were given by the ICT, Strategy & 
Performance Manager and how this would be progressed with the Task & Finish 

group.  
 

The report was noted.  
 
 

190.    CONSIDERATION OF THE FORWARD PLAN  
 

The forward plan was discussed and updated. 
 

Page 5



4 
 

 
 

 
 

The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and closed at 2.50 pm 
 

 
Chair:  Date:  
 

 

Page 6



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY (INTERNAL) COMMITTEE – Updated for 26th July 2022 

 
Action List 

 
 
Minute No. / 
Date 
 

Action Person 
responsible for 

Action 

Most recent Update Action 
Status 

176  Circulate breakdown of people in 

temporary accommodation 
 

Janet Williams Chased 25.05.22, 10.06.22 & 06.07.22. 

 
Email response from Helen Page 13.07.22 – 

 
As of 13 July we have 70 households placed 

into temporary accommodation. 49 are in spot 

purchased placements, which primarily means 
holiday let accommodation or B&B where they 

have to move frequently, and which is the most 
costly form of accommodation for the Council. 
This is an exceptionally high number for 

Torridge. 
 

We have 21 households in Council owned or 
managed accommodation. Currently, we have 
one private sector leased property having void 

works completed. Two hostel rooms are having 
void works completed, and one family in a hostel 

has been provided with two rooms because of 
the size of their household. We also have one 
hostel room that can only be used as an 

emergency crash pad because of its size. 
 

Complete 

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 3



177 Circulate figures of people affected 

by Housing Benefit back log and 
investigate additional phone 
closure 

 

Staci Dorey Update to be given at the meeting. 

 
Update from Staci on 27.06.022 - no one is 
affected by the backlog as all claims are 

backdated from the date the application is 
received. 

 
Additional phone closure has been implemented 
 

Ongoing 

188 – QBR 4 
Q&A 

Details of switchboard to be 
include in the Members Bulletin 

Dem Services 
 
 

Published in the 4th July Members Bulletin Complete 

188 – QBR 4 

Q&A 

Details on the next steps for TDC 

on the Floating Offshore initiative 
 

Sean Kearney  Email sent 16.06.2022 advising him of this 

action.  
 

Answer received 4th July  
 
Specifically, we are concentrating on: 
 

Submitting the Appledore Clean Maritime 

Innovation Centre Levelling Up Fund bid 
Liaising with the prospective developer of the 
White Cross site 

Providing supply chain, community benefit and 
networking information 

Integration into the Celtic Sea Power network to 
raise the profile of our local offering 
Preplanning advice in relation to the landfall of 

cables and their route towards the grid 
connection 

Considering the opportunity presented in the 
preparation of the Shared Prosperity Fund Local 
Investment Plan  

 

Complete 

P
age 8



188 – QBR 4 

Q&A 

Where does 

recycled/used/collected electrical 
equipment get transported 
 

Richard Haste  Email sent 16.06.2022 advising him of this action. 
 
Response received 16.06.22 
 
Our waste electrical equipment (WEEE) was being collected free 
of charge by South West Computer Recycling Ltd based just 
outside Tiverton. They would grade the WEEE based on its type 
and then find suitable end markets. For WEEE with high value 
circuit boards the equipment would typically be broken down into 
component parts with the circuit boards sent onto a smelters 
where the precious metals can be recovered. The steel and 
aluminium portion of the waste would go to metals recyclers 
after being bulked up and the plastic waste left over would be 
sorted by type and sent off to appropriate end markets.  
 
South West Computer Recycling Ltd were purchased by a larger 
Devon based waste management company earlier in the year 
and our free collection arrangement ended. A discussion with 
Teignbridge District Council highlighted another company that is 
able to provide free collections  of WEEE; ERP Recycling. 
European Recycling Platform (ERP) are a Europe wide recycling 
operation that works in partnership with a range of UK based 
recycling companies. They have provided free pallets for 
domestic battery recycling and the batteries our crews collect at 
the kerbside are taken to a plant in the West Midlands. We are 
still waiting for our first WEEE skip to be delivered but the 
electrical waste we provide them with will be handled in much 
the same way as before. 
 
Most of the metal waste from the WEEE we collect will be 
reprocessed in the UK. The plastics do sometimes travel as far 
afield as Europe; the polymers used to make electrical 
equipment are very different to those used in the manufacture of 
food and drink packaging and are sometimes engineered to fulfil 
certain structural roles and to be flame retardant. This means 
they require more careful sorting and grading. Inevitably some of 
the plastic will be graded as mixed plastic jazz (an industry 
description) and used as filler material in things like plastic 
furniture and plastic toys.   
 
Once ERP start making regular WEEE collections from us I will 
be able to get a full run down of where any material they collect 
from us ends up. 
 
 

Complete 

P
age 9



 

P
age 10



 
  

REPORT OF Finance Manager and S.151 Officer 

To: Internal Scrutiny Committee 

Subject: QBR 1 

Date: 26 July 2022 Reference:  

 
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT:     
 
For Members to receive the quarterly business report for the period April – June 2022 
 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 

  
The Internal Scrutiny Committee monitors the Council performance each quarter via the 
QBR.  This report details the financial performance of the Council for the period April – June 
2022 and projects the financial position for the financial year 2022/23. 
 

2. REPORT 

 
The QBR 1 (2022/23) is attached at Appendix 1 for the Committee’s information.  The 
headline figure is a projected deficit for the financial year 2022/23 against budget of 
£1.081m.  Additionally the 2022/23 budgets were balanced by a contribution from the 
Transition in Government Funding Reserve of £373k; meaning expenditure in 2022/23 is 
forecast to exceed projected income by £1.454m. 
 
Appendix 1 provides greater detail, but the key variances are expanded upon below. 
 
Homelessness – Temporary Accommodation 

Currently there is a projected overspend of £890k with respect to the Council undertaking 
its statutory housing responsibilities.  The key factors behind this overspend are: 
 

 Increased demand 

The Council is experiencing unprecedented levels of demand from residents at risk of 
homelessness. This is a result of the decline in the supply of affordable rented 
accommodation. Within Torridge the conversion of properties into holidays lets is 
understood  to be a factor, but there has been an increase nationally in property 
prices and subsequently rental costs. 

 Lack of affordable rental properties 

The lack of affordable rental properties is making it increasingly difficult for Torridge’s 
housing team to move people from temporary accommodation into sustainable rental 
properties.  Rental properties are increasingly advertised at values far in excess of  
Local Housing Allowance (LHA) rates, the rate which is paid by Housing Benefits. 

 Cost of Temporary Accommodation 

With the Covid-19 pandemic restricting foreign holidays and the increase in 
staycation, the costs of temporary accommodation in the North Devon area have 
risen markedly in the last few years. Costs are particularly steep in peak holiday 
season. 

 Housing Benefit rules 

When placing people in temporary accommodation the Council is only permitted to 
reclaim a modest proportion of the costs via housing benefit (essentially the LHA 
rates).  Consequently there is a large burden of the costs of temporary 
accommodation that needs to be borne by the Council. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 8



 
  

 
 Staff Costs 

Clearly with inflation currently at the highest level for decades, it is not surprising that the 
unions have put in pay requests for the financial year 2022/23 in line with inflation (currently 
10%).  Allied to general inflationary pressure, it is widely forecast that the Minimum Living 
Wage (MLW) will be uplifted by inflation (10%) effective from the 1st April 2023.  

 
The MLW for the financial year 2022/23 is currently  the same of the lowest local authority 
salary grade (£9.50 per hour); should the MLW  be uplifted by inflation in April 2023, it will 
likely exceed the bottom 5 local authority salary scale points.  A similar inflationary increase 
effective from April 2024 will see the MLW exceed the bottom 10 local authority pay scales. 
 
Circa 33% of Torridge’s workforce currently  are employed in posts covered by the lowest 10 
pay points. 
 
As the Council is obliged to pay the MLW as a minimum, the costs of the 2022/23 pay award 
will exceed the 2% budgeted for in 2022/23. 
 
The projected overspend resulting from the projected 2022/23 pay award and the agency 
costs back filling vacancies are predicted to be £299k. 

 
Utilities and Fuel 

The current high levels of inflation for utilities and fuel are projected to result in overspends 
of £89k and £122k respectively. The utilities over spend has been partly offset by the fact 
that the Council’s current fixed term deal for Gas and Electricity runs to October 2022. 
 
Interest Receivable 

With the recent rises in the Bank of England base rates the returns the Council can receive 
from its short term treasury investments have risen, the forecast additional income of 
£202k assumes interest rates remain at their current level for the remainder of the financial 
year. 
 

3. OTHER MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION 

 
 Relative size of the projected deficit 

o The projected deficit at £1.081m represents circa 7.2% of the Council’s gross 
spend of circa £15m. 
 

 Transition in Government Funding Reserve 

o The Transition in Government Funding Reserve is held by the Council to 
balance its budget until saving/additional income can be identified to bring the 
budgets back into balance. 
 

o The balance on the reserve as at 31st March 2022 was £2,387k. It was 
budgeted to utilise £378k of the reserve to balance the 2022/23 budgets. 

 

o Considering the projected deficit for 2022/23 of £1,081k the forecast balance 
on the reserve as at 21st March 2023 would be £931k (£2,387k - £378 - 
£1,081k). In other words 61% of the Transition in Government Funding 

Reserve would be consumed meeting the 2022/23 deficit. 
 

 Recruitment and Retention 
o Like many sectors the Council is experiencing difficulties in both staff 

recruitment and retention.  The Council has a vacancy budget target of £400k 
per annum. The vacancy target has been met after quarter 1; (after taking into 
account assumptions regarding when various posts will ultimately be filled).   

Page 12



 
  

 
o The budget forecast does not include any assumptions about vacancies 

which may arise in the future.  Where it has been necessary to backfill posts 
with agency staff this has been often at significantly greater cost. 
 

 Fast moving environment 

o The scale of the housing crisis facing the Council and the emerging 
inflationary pressures, has seen the Council operate in a rapidly changing 
environment.  The outturn for the financial year 2021/22 was a surplus of 
£1.752m.  A projected movement of £2.833m between the 2021/22 outturn 
and the projected financial outturn for 2022/23. 

o With the current levels of volatility with inflation, recruitment, and supply chain 
issues the projection presented in this report could still change significantly at 
some point through the current financial year. 

 
4. IMPLICATIONS 

 
Legal Implications 
No specific legal implications 
 
Financial Implications 
Considered in the QBR 
 
Human Resources Implications 
None 
 
Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications 
None 
 
Equality/Diversity 
Not applicable 
 
Risk Management 
The current financial performance of the Council represents a threat to its ability to deliver its 
current services in the future.  
 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
This report is in compliance with the Council’s Constitution 
 
Data Protection (GDPR) Implications 
Not applicable 
 
Climate Change 
Not applicable 
 
 

4. CONCLUSIONS 
 

The current financial performance of the Council is an area of grave concern, it is imperative 
that the members budget working group identify tangible savings/sources of additional 
income of sufficient magnitude to significantly reduce the projected deficits of the Council. 
 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

That Members: 
 

Page 13



 
  

1. Receive and note the QBR 
 
 

Page 14



APPENDIX 1

Budget Monitoring July unadjusted

Full year 

Budget
Projection to Year end

Worse than 

budget

Better than 

budget
Net Variance

£ £ £ £ £

Revenue monitoring
416,585 340,307 Chief Executive 1,728,255 1,731,235 2,980  l

2,466,811 792,533 Head of Legal & 

Governance

2,485,843 3,196,811 710,968  

l

319,446 1,984,197 Finance Manager 

(S151)

(605,703) (121,534) 484,169  

l

1,225,442 1,399,256 Head of 

Communities & 

Place

4,000,763 3,883,318 0 (117,445)

l

2,135,718 663,162 Funding (7,609,158) (7,609,158) 0  l

1,630,380 (374,004) Total 0 1,080,672 1,198,117 (117,445) 1,080,672 l

Highlights July unadjusted

Overspends (in £'000) Over Budget % of Budget Underspends (in £'000) Under budget % of budget

Homelessness - Temp 

Accomodation (includes HB 

subsidy shortfall) 890 241% Interest receivable (202) 594%

Staff costs - primarily 

anticipated additional costs 

of pay award (above 

budgetary provision - £276k) 

- includes Agency costs 299 3%

Grant Income - Energy 

Rebate and other grants

(98) n/a

Transport Costs (Fuel) 122 32%

Land Charges Grant Income - 

move of functions to VOA (49) n/a

Utilites 89 31% Rental and other income (42) 4%

Premises Costs (contract 

cleaning, security) 42 Harbour & Pilotage Income (13) 19%

Court Costs 35 25% Other unders & overspends (3) n/a

Third Party Services (Beach 

Safety, Leisure etc) 11 1% Subtotal underspends (407)

Subtotal overspends 1,488                           

June 2022

Profiled  Budget - £ Actual   To Date - £
Service 

responsibility centre

June 2022

P
age 15



Income Monitoring ( Variance to Budget) June-2022

Description Service Manager
Actual Year to 

Date

Year to Date 

Budget

Actual Same 

time last year
Notes on Income

Car Parking Income (including Season Tickets) Estates Manager 412,672 £359,319 £288,867
increased charges 22/23

Car Parking Penalty Notice Income Estates Manager £12,337 £13,750 £9,140

Northam Burrows Estates Manager £125,175 £77,067 £111,559
increased charges 22/23

Rental Income (Corporate Property & Caddsdown) Estates Manager £289,884 £225,807 £227,037

Timing of Payment Plans

Planning Helen Smith £228,832 £209,375 £288,715
Highly variable - large 

applications

Garden Waste Richard Haste £616,517 £617,143 £567,100 increased charges 22/23
******

Harbour & Pilotage Richard Haste £48,862 £19,187 £25,632

Invoice re 21/22 

Oldenburg raised in 22/23 

and income from Deo 

Gloria sand dredging

Building Control Helen Smith £69,692 £49,312 £68,629
drop in winter months - as 

less building undertaken 

in winter months

Licensing Janet Williams £31,854 £39,336 £29,405 drop off in taxi licensing

Hostel Income Janet Williams £56,505 £53,293 £65,136

Land Charges Staci Dorey £28,106 £28,000 £35,438

slight cooling off in 

property market

Total receipts from above £1,920,436 £1,691,589 £1,716,658

*** Garden Waste - the amounts quoted are the actual income paid to-date as the service is run from June to June there is an adjustment done at the year-end to move

two months income to the next financial year.

Salary Monitoring ( Variance to Budget) June-2022

Salary Related Expenditure
Expenditure to date

Budget to date
Total Budget - 

current year

Funded 

establishment
Vacancies @ 31 Dec 

21(Excluding Operations)

Salaries, overtime, NI, Pension, agency costs £2,288,705 £2,466,987 £9,896,217, 266 11.4 FTE

P
age 16



Budget Narrative 

The Headline figure is a projected deficit for the financial year 2022/23 of £1,081k.

Key significant adverse variances

£866k

£299k

£122k

£89k

Key Favourable Variances

£202k

£98k

The Council has in previous years been tasked with undertaking additional 

duties on behalf of Central Government.  These have included amongst 

others delivery of the energy rebate scheme. Whilst there has been 

additional costs associated with these additional burdens the actual grants 

received has exceeded the direct costs incurred.

A projected overspend of £890k with regards to the Council undertaking its 

statutory homelessness responsibilities.  The overpsend is a combination of 

temporary accomodation costs and housing benefit subsidy shortfall
Staff costs - the prime driver behind the overspend is the anticipated costs 

of meeting the 2022/23 pay award. A budgetary provision of 2% was 

included within the 2022/23 budgets but taking into account the impact of 

the projected inflationary uplift to the Minimum Living Wage (MLW); a 

settlement in the region of the 5% is forecast.

Inflationary increases, primarily with regards to Fuel have resulted in a 

forecast over spend on transport related costs of £122k

The Council's utilites are fixed until October 2022, based on current market 

conditions a overspend on utilties costs is forecast

Recent increases in the Bank of England base rate has increased the 

Councils' return on its short term treasury deposits

P
age 17



Budget Monitoring - Capital Reserves

Programme Area

Net Capital 

Programme 

Budget 2022/23

£

Spent to 30 

June

£

Net Capital 

Budget c/f

£

Gross Capital 

Programme 

Budget 2022/23

£

Gross Capital 

Program 

Budget 23/24 - 

26/27

£

Total Capital 

Program Budget 

22/23 - 26/27

£

ICT Related 255,307 91,476 163,831 255,307 260,000 515,307

Vehicles 1,199,504 420,777 778,727 1,199,504 3,896,465 5,095,969

Property/Infrastructure 10,338,703 139,354 10,199,350 10,338,703 1,331,929 11,670,633

Regeneration 134,270 -26,063 160,333 134,270 4,060,608 4,194,878

Culture & Sport 369,001 104,805 264,197 369,001 4,999 374,000

Community 736,918 153,028 1,339,327 1,492,355 2,000,000 3,492,355 1

Environment 487,809 0 487,809 487,809 0 487,809

Total 13,521,513 883,377 13,393,573 14,276,950 11,554,000 25,830,950

Note 1: Disabled Facilities Grant of £755K received in advance of spend

Capital Narrative
Vehicles

Property/Infrastructure

Regeneration

Culture & Sport

Community

Environment The Budget includes £157k for Torrington Cemetery Extension, and £157k for Northam burrows 

estuary work.

The budget of £1.2m includes provision of an additional recycling vehicle (£140k) which will be 

purchased when recycling volumes reach a point at which an additional collection round will 

need to be introduced, this point has not been reached yet, and will be impacted by the future 

delivery of an Environmental Centre. 

So far this year £289K has been spent on two refuse vehicles. We have also purchased 2 car 

park vans.Further replacement vehicles are anticipated in the remainder of the financial year.

The budget includes £7m for a new Environmental Centre, this project is expected to start in this 

financial year. The budget also includes £710k for Strategic Property Acquisition.

The Budget includes several smaller projects, and includes the retention on the Burrows Centre.

The Budget includes £350K for Leisure, of which £95K has been spent on gym equipment.

The Budget includes the Disabled Facilities Grants of £755k, of the remainder, £302k relates to 

homelessness accomodation and remodelling Barton House Homelessness Hostel..

P
age 18



Budget Monitoring - Earmarked Reserves

Reserves
Balance on April 1 Receipts to date

Spend to 

date

Transfer 

+/- 
Commitments Balance

Backlog Maintenance 432,557 75,000 15,419 0 492,138

Section 215 Notices 110,609 0 0 0 0 110,609

Appeals 137,646 20,000 0 0 0 157,646

Apprentices 146,510 0 106,256 0 0 40,254

Business Support 194,270 0 0 0 100,000 94,270

Econoic Regeneration 144,750 0 0 0 0 144,750

Transitional Government Funding 2,386,732 0 373,490 0 0 2,013,242

Project 153,792 0 0 0 0 153,792

Homelessness 145,629 0 38,642 0 0 106,987

Leisure reserve 697,738 0 0 0 0 697,738

Succession Planning & Retention Reserve 153,000 0 0 0 0 153,000

Various Future Commitment Reserves (<£100K) 610,373 33,225 49,198 0 153,321 441,079

Local Plans Inquiry Reserve 306,831 0 0 0 0 306,831

***Earmarked Revenue Reserves 5,620,437 128,225 583,005 0 745,459 4,420,197

TDC NNDR Coll Fund Surplus/Deficit 2,561,482 0 2,277,177 0 284,305 0

Covid 19 grants receiptsed in advance 260,884 0 24,500 0 236,384 0

+++ Subtotal Other Revenue Reserves 2,822,366 0 2,301,677 0 520,689 0

Total revenue earmarked reserves 8,442,803 128,225 2,884,682 0 1,266,148 4,420,197

Earmarked Capital Reserves 7,648,680 914,324 0 0 8,381,720 181,284

Total Earmarked Revenue & Capital Reserves 16,091,483 1,042,549 2,884,682 0 9,647,868 4,601,481

*** Earmarked revenue reserves include

Transition in Government Funding Reserve £2,013,242 Special Projects Reserve £153,792

Local Plan Enquiry Reserve £306,831 Dragon's Den / Business Support £194,270

Backlog Maintenance Reserve £492,138 Leisure Reserve £697,738

+++ Other Revenue Reserves

The Collection Fund Reserve relates to setting aside monies to meet the shortfall on the Business Rate Collection Fund in 2021/22 which, by statute, can 

only be realised in the following financial year (2022/23). The £284k is not available to the Council

The Covid 19 grants reserve of £261k relates to grants received by the Council in advance of expenditure; this reserve is not available to the Council.

P
age 19



Investments

Y/N
Notional 

Cost

Goldman Sachs International Bank 2,000,000 1 Year @ 0.30% 08/07/2021 - 08/07/2022 N -

Goldman Sachs International Bank 3,000,000 1 Year @ 0.40% 28/09/2021 - 28/09/2022 N -

Bank Of Scotland 5,000,000 Instant Access @ 0.01% 28/9/2021 - Ongoing N -

Subtotal - Short Term Treasury Deposits 10,000,000 -

Deposit A/C 11,198,000 N -

Total on deposit 21,198,000 -

There are currently no "green/ethical" investments, as there are few providers in the market, and those that are do not currently offer the rates, 

required by our Treasury Management Policy 

Short Term Treasury Deposits Amount Trade Dates

Ethical Investments

P
age 20



 

   
2022 - 2025 

Torridge District 

Council 

Digital by Default and ICT Strategy 

Page 21

Agenda Item 10



Introduction 

Channel Shift - There is little doubt that the pace of change is increasing, with 
more of our customers using smart phones and tablets, and expecting to 
interact with us online and digitally, much like they do with their bank, 
supermarket, and other suppliers. 

Providing digital services that internal and external customers can have 
confidence in is reliant on a robust ICT infrastructure. This strategy is a 
combined approach to make sure that the council has digital capabilities 
considering culture, practices, processes, and technologies. 

It means working to a set of principles, focusing on user needs, and a 
commitment to making services digital by default, so that they are simpler, 
clearer, and faster for users. 

The council is a signatory to the Local Digital Declaration. That means we are 
committed to: 

 
Redesigning our services around the needs of the people using 
them 

  

 

Breaking our dependence on inflexible and expensive 
technology that doesn’t join up effectively, in favour of modular 
common components and open data standards 

  

 
Demonstrating digital leadership, creating the conditions for 
genuine organisational transformation 

  

 
Designing safe, secure, and useful ways of sharing information 
to build trust among our partners and citizens 

  

 

Embedding an open culture that values, incentivises and 
expects working in the open wherever we can, sharing our plans 
and experience, working collaboratively with other 
organisations, and reusing good practice 

 

 

  

Page 22

https://localdigital.gov.uk/declaration/


Strategic Direction 

The Council’s Strategic Plan 2020-23 sets out what the Council wants to 
achieve for Torridge and how we are going to achieve it. 

Our Vision is “Torridge a great place to live, work and visit” and the strategic 
themes that support this vision are: 

Theme 1 Local Economy 

Theme 2 Communities, Health, and Housing 

Theme 3 Our Environment Our Future 

Theme 4 Our Council 

These are underpinned by a commitment to professional, high performing 
service delivery. 

This Digital by Default & ICT Strategy seeks to complement and support the 
delivery of the Strategic Plan together with our operational business plans. 

At a time when expectation and demand is increasing and the resources, we 
have available for us are reducing we must find new delivery methods that 
meet both the demands and efficiencies required of us.  

Our ICT environment will be secure, accessible, and maintained to the highest 
standards. Our core platforms, systems, hardware, and devices must be fit for 
purpose and fit for the future. Our technology will enable and empower all of 
our users rather than add complexity to the work they do.  

Our systems and applications will be available to all of us, wherever we need 
to work from. They will operate at the latest versions and will be fully 
supported by our suppliers, and we will, where applicable, continue to provide 
platforms and software in the cloud where it is economically viable to do so.  
We will maximise the use of existing systems and past investment whilst 
embracing technological advances to deliver a truly flexible and mobile 
working environment that is fit for the digital age.  

Page 23



Why Digital by Default? 

Digital by Default is a keyway of both reducing costs and improving the service 
to our customers, whilst not forcing away those customers who still need to use 
traditional channels such as telephone or in person visits. 

Torridge has recognised the need to ‘shift’ but also accepts this will need to be 
achieved through ‘nudge’ methods for it to gain wider acceptance as a strategic 
approach. It must be recognised that the greatest level of channel shift comes 
from offering better, simplified and more integrated digital solutions. 

Providing self-service access to information and services at a time and by a 
range of channels that are convenient for the customer.  

Benefits include: 

✓ making sure digital services and content are accessible to all 
✓ creating a consistent experience across all channels 
✓ more effective and efficient customer engagement 

The business case for channel shift, in itself, is very compelling. As the table 
below shows, the cost of servicing a customer electronically, via the website, is 
a small fraction of that of seeing them face to face, or cost of them calling in. 

Channel 
Cost per ‘visit’ 

(average of Deloitte & Socitm research) 

Face to face £11.44 

Telephone £2.30 

Website 32p 

 

 

 

  

Page 24



Where Are We Now?  
 

The Council has been monitoring incoming work channels (website visitors, 
email traffic, telephone calls, visitors to reception, etc) for a number of years 
and this has enabled us to verify a clear shift in customer behaviours vis-à-vis 
their interaction with our officers. We have seen a significant/long-term fall off 

in physical visitors to our reception sites and reductions in telephone traffic; 

there has been an ongoing trend in using email as the primary source of 

contact with officers and growing levels of activity on our website. 

 

We have already responded to this behavioural shift in our customers by 

enabling access to our services in a way which meets those customer 

expectations and enhances the levels of services our customers receive. This 

has been happening in a number of ways:   
 

 

 
Our website has 
been re-designed to 
ensure that our on-
line services are 
easy to use and 
simple to follow 

 
Our on-line services are 
available 24 hours a day, 

365 days a year 
 

 

New products and services 
(e.g. the garden waste 
scheme) are available 

digitally to our customers 

 

 

 
 

 

We have implemented a robust 
work from anywhere solution to 

increase staff productivity 
 
 
 

 

We have identified 
opportunities to use 
Social Media to 
further promote and 
deliver our services 

 

 

 

This Digital by Default strategy highlights the next step in this process.  

  
Page 25



What We Will Do Next 

 

1. Robust, secure, and reliable ICT 

We will continue to provide a secure, resilient, and reliable core infrastructure 
and we will upgrade the Council's Physical and Virtual Microsoft server estate. 

We will take all measures necessary to protect our network against cyber-
attacks and to ensure robust arrangements are in place to deliver service 
continuity in the event of a component failure or other adverse incident.   

We will develop a Cyber Security Policy to help improve our cyber defences 
and provide direction to help address the ever-changing threat. 

 

2. Secure by design 

The security of our systems and data is of overriding importance. Information 
security will be designed into all our systems, changes, and processes right 
from the start. 

 

3. Council in the Cloud 

Cloud-hosted platforms and software provide an opportunity to move away 
from costly, locally hosted solutions towards better value in terms of access, 
service reliability and security.  

We will reduce our local infrastructure through a preference that systems will 
be vendor or cloud hosted where it is cost effective to do so.  

Benefits include: 

• reduced footprint – smaller data centre (or none) 
• specialist support – provided by supplier 
• optimisation – reducing costs over time 
• Disaster Recovery and Business Continuity improvements 
• Increased security  

 

4. Website  

We will continue to update our new website and promote channel shift through 
making more services available as online self-service whether for information 
requests, transactions, or reporting; increase integration with ‘line of business’ 
systems to enable more efficient processes and greater transparency. 

 Page 26



5. Printing & scanning review 

We will review all the printing and scanning throughout the Council and 
produce an Options Report to feed into the procurement of a new contract and 
provide options for improved printing and scanning.   

One of the aims of the review would be to make a positive impact on our 
climate commitment, through a continued reduction in the use of paper and 
associated services like postage. 

 

6. Continue the implementation of Microsoft 365  

We will aim to maximise the potential of the Microsoft 365 platform to support 
council-based innovation and development and find new opportunities to help 
deliver the maximum benefit for staff and customers. 

 

7. Information assets and data 

Maintain quality, confidentiality, integrity, and availability of data and enable 
use of comprehensive and powerful data analysis and manipulation tools. We 
will introduce a modern corporate GIS system that is an interactive and useful 
GIS tool available to staff and the public making better use of the data that we 
hold. 

Benefits include: 

✓ accurate and timely reporting to make informed decisions 
✓ analysis giving intelligence and enabling predictions, to aid decision 

making and policy shaping 
✓ data quality management 
✓ data security and protection 

 

8. Improving digital skills 

The Council will actively enhance the digital skills and cyber awareness of the 
workforce, the digital leadership and cyber awareness skills of senior 
managers and elected members to make optimal use of software and ICT. 

Benefits include: 

✓ digitally enabled workforce – comfortable with the tools they use 
✓ cyber aware and  
✓ development skills 
✓ building digital services 
✓ digital by default principles in everything we do 

Page 27



 

9. Modern telephony 

We will review our current telephony system and investigate cloud-based 
telephone system to provide improved capabilities, improved resilience and 
simplified telephony for services and customers. 

 

10. Continuous improvement 
 

• We will work with Services across the Council to review processes, 
redesign workflow, ensuring best use of software and technology and 
adding website forms to help increase productivity and the service to our 
customers. 
 

• We will also continue to develop the capabilities of the ICT Service Desk 
through the introduction of a range of self-help capabilities and greater 
automation of routine tasks. 
 

• We will review, improve and redesign our disaster recovery and business 
continuity plans and technologies around cloud-based technologies. 
 

• We will review and replace our legacy ICT code base systems. 

 

  

Page 28



Appendix A : Measuring Success 
 

It is essential that we can monitor progress and ensure that the work we are 
doing is delivering a tangible difference to our customers and enhancing the 
effective operation of the Council’s services. Therefore, this strategy will be 
supported by the measurement of performance indicators associated with the 
digital interactions with the Council. Progress will be reported periodically to 
the Strategic Management Team and via the QBR. 

In additional to reporting the number of visitors to our website, we will also 
report on activity on our website in terms of page views and submits, allowing 
us to analyse how many customers are viewing information on our website, 
and how many are performing on-line transactions. 

As services re-design their work processes and provide on-line forms for 
customers to interact more effectively with the Council, we will see further 
increases in these parameters. 

 

 

Note: The figures for 2021/22 were distorted by the implementation of the new 
website and the Covid crisis and are not a representative data set for future 
benchmarking. 

9289 9221
13570

24312 21687
26254

69701

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021/22

Website Forms - Page Views

3102 2613 3614
4924 5255 6193

27974

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021/22

Website Forms - Submit

Page 29



 

 

(only 3 year email data available due to a change of system) 

 

 

Data collated over the past seven years shows that the trend is a move away 

from the older/analogue means of customer contact towards digital means. 

- Inbound email traffic has gone up by almost 50% over the last 2 years 
- Website visitors has been increasing by 20% year. The 10% reduction this 

year is due to the new website launch and the cookies policy 
- Phone traffic has been declining (the lockdown year in 2020/21 distorted 

this). Landline calls made have reduced (homeworking). Outbound calls 
have risen (we now have mobile stats so we are reporting more calls). 

- Physical visitors to reception was reducing by 10% a year, but fell by 90% 
during lockdown. We have seen a 60% increase in 2021/22.  

- Social Media followers continue to rise and this should continue as 
Comms users additional/more modern platforms 
 

56,878

72,382
84,232

30,358 29,427
39,549

116,333

138,762

121,240

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

TDC Monthy Email TrafficInbound emails

Outbound emails

Internal emails

Page 30



 

 

 

33,972

30,285

27,443

25,115

19,135

1,948 3,135

20,833

16,667

12,500 9,476 8,957
9,901

8,4829,748 9,803

12,985

15,320

19,129

25,530

22,665

5,917 5,833 5,833 5,813
6,080

3,368 3,324
4,317

7933
7,114

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

TDC Incoming Workflows (2015 - 2022)
Annual Visitors to reception

Average Monthly Phone Calls Answered

Average Monthly Website Visitors

Average Monthly Landline Calls Made

Average Monthly Mobile Calls Made

Page 31



 

Page 32



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY (INTERNAL) COMMITTEE – FORWARD PLAN 2022/23 
 

Cycle 1 

 

Cycle 2 Cycle 3    Cycle 4 

 

Cycle 5 Cycle 6 

 

Cycle 7 

 

Cycle 7  Cycle 8 

14 June 2022 26 July 2022 20 Sept. 2022  8 Nov. 2022 13 Dec. 2022 7 Feb. 2023 21 Mar. 2023  

10 am 10am  10 am  10am 10am 10am 10am  

 
QBR 4 

 

Forward Plan / 
Work Programme 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 
QBR1 

 

Census Results  
(JWal) 

 
Draft Digital by 
Default Strategy  

(JWal) 
 

Temporary 
Accommodation  

(SD) 

 
Grounds 

Maintenance 

Service Update 
 

Housing Update 
(JWil) 

  
QBR2 

 
Social Values 

Update 

 
Budget Special 

 
QBR3 

 

 

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 12


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Action List
	8 QBR 1 - Financial Pages Only
	QBR 1
	QBR 2
	QBR 3
	QBR 4
	QBR 5
	QBR 6

	10 Digital by Default and ICT Strategy
	12 Consideration of the Forward Plan

